
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 1 of 3 
City Council Regular Agenda 
February 7, 2013 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
City Council Regular Meeting 
February 7, 2013, at 7:00 PM 

City Hall - 665 Country Club Road 
 

Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lucas will be held 
on Thursday, February 7, 2013, at 7 PM at the Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, 
Texas, at which time the following agenda will be discussed. 

Agenda 

Call to Order 
 
Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Determination of Quorum 
Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
Pledge of Allegiance 

Citizens’ Input 
At this time citizens who have pre-registered by filling out a “Request to Speak” sheet and have submitted the sheet to the City 
Secretary before the call to order will be allowed to speak on any matter other than personnel matters or matters under litigation, 
for a length of time not to exceed three minutes. No Council action or discussion may take place on a matter until such matter 
has been placed on a future agenda and posted in accordance with law. 

1) Citizens’ Input. 

Community Interest 

2) Items of Community Interest. 

Public Hearings 
The Public Hearing agenda is provided for the purpose of allowing citizens to ask specific questions regarding only the subject 
posted for the Public Hearing. Generally the Public Hearing is required by State Law and a record of those attending the Public 
Hearing is maintained as part of the official record of the proceedings. 

3) Public Hearing/Discuss and Consider the approval of Ordinance # 2013-02-00749 
concerning a request for zoning of a tract of land situated in the James Anderson 
Survey, Abstract No. 17, the John McKinney Survey, Abstract No. 596, and the I & G 
N RY CO Survey, Abstract No. 1060, Collin County, Texas and being part of a called 
427.600± acre tract of land described in a deed to HHEC SpinCo LLC as recorded in 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 2 of 3 
City Council Regular Agenda 
February 7, 2013 

Clerk’s File No. 20080902001058900, of the Land Records of Collin County, Texas, 
more commonly known as the Hunt Property located along Parker Road and 
Southview.  Zoning is recommended as follows:  Residential one acre (R-1) 238.714 
acres and Commercial Business (CB) 188.633 acres. [Hilbourn] [This is the 2nd 
Public Hearing, the 1st Public Hearing was held at the Planning & Zoning 
Commission Meeting, January 10, 2013] 

Regular Agenda 

4) Discuss and Consider the approval of the minutes from the January 3, 2013 City 
Council Regular meeting. [Wingo] 

5) Discuss and Consider the approval of Ordinance # 2013-02-00750 of the City of 
Lucas, Texas, calling for a General Election to be held on May 11, 2013, for the 
purpose of electing two (2) city councilmembers at large; by the qualified voters of 
the City of Lucas; providing for the publication and posting of notice of said election; 
providing for the appointment of a deputy early voting clerk; providing for early 
voting; establishing regular business hours of the City Secretary’s Office. [Wingo] 

6) Discuss and Consider the approval of Ordinance # 2013-02-00751 of the City Of 
Lucas, Texas, amending the Code of Ordinances by amending Chapter 3 “Building 
Regulations”, Article 3.16 “Signs” by amending Section 3.16.003 to provide for a 
general penalty provision and by amending Section 3.16.007 “Exempt Signs” by 
adding a new Subsection 3.16.007(14) to provide regulations regarding on Premise 
Construction Signs. [Hilbourn] 

7) Discuss and Consider the approval of Resolution # R-2013-02-00395 of the City of 
Lucas, Texas, authorizing the City Manager to execute the agreement between the 
City and Dana Huffman for Dana Huffman to serve as presiding Judge for the City’s 
Municipal Court.  [Jenkins] 

8) Discuss and Consider the approval of extending the contract between the City of 
Lucas and the East Texas Coalition for a period of one (1) year for ambulance 
services. [Kitchens] 

9) Discuss and Consider an update on EMS services. [Kitchens] 

10) Discuss and Consider an update on the Fire Department Expansion Design. 
[Kitchens] 

11) Adjournment. 

As authorized by Section 551.071 (2) of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may 
convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from 
the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 3 of 3 
City Council Regular Agenda 
February 7, 2013 

Approval 

Approved by: Mayor Rebecca Mark, February 1, 2013. 

Certification 

I hereby certify that the above notice of meeting was posted on the bulletin board at 
Lucas City Hall by 5:00 p.m. on or before Friday, February 1, 2013, as required in 
accordance with Government Code §551.041. 

 

_______________________________ 
Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC, City Secretary 

This building is wheelchair accessible. Any requests for sign interpretive services or other special 
requests for assistance of the hearing impaired must be made 48 hours in advance of the meeting. 
To make such arrangements, please call 972-727-8999 or email secretary@lucastexas.us. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 7, 2013 

LUCAS CITY COUNCIL  

Meeting Date: February 7, 2013 

AGENDA ITEM:  
 Call to Order  
 Roll Call      Present  Absent 

Mayor Rebecca Mark              

Seat 1 CM Wayne Millsap           

Seat 2 CM Jim Olk            

Seat 3 CM Steve Duke              

Seat 4 CM Philip Lawrence             

Seat 5 CM Debbie Fisher             

Seat 6 MPT Kathleen Peele           

 

 Determination of Quorum 
 Reminder to silence cell phones 
 Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Informational Purposes 

 

City Manager Jeff Jenkins     

City Secretary Kathy Wingo      

Public Works Director Stacy Caudell     

Finance Manager Liz Exum     

Fire Chief Jim Kitchens        

Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  

City Attorney Joe Gorfida, Jr.      

   

    

 



Memo from the City Manager regarding upcoming Council meeting February 7, 2012, at 
7:00 p.m., in the City Hall Council Chambers. 
 
 
 
Item #3  
 
This item corrects an issue caused by the incorrect legal description in the zoning passed in 2009.  
Now with this zoning, the legal description will match the development agreement and map 
depiction.   
 
I would approve this ordinance.   
 
Item #6 
 
The changes to this code would allow construction signs.  The signs shall not be placed more 
than seven days in advance of the project, and must be removed within seven days of completion 
of the project.  Only one construction sign per street frontage per property would be allowed.   
 
I would approve these changes to the code. 
 
Item #7 
 
This agreement would renew the contract with Judge Dana Huffman for two years starting on 
March 1st.  The Judge did request in section 4.4, if the case load increases, then the parties shall 
review this agreement.  This clause was requested if there is a major increase in the number of 
cases due  to the new Walmart.  Right now, I am not foreseeing a higher demand on the court.     
 
I would approve this agreement.     
 
Item 8 & 9 
 
The current contract with East Texas EMS expires on September 30, 2013.  The Coalition is 
recommending a one-year extension, so that everyone in the Coalition can decide if they want to 
continue beyond 2014.  An extension would allow members to discuss if they want to make 
changes to their EMS systems.  This item is informational, as the actual resolution to extend to 
extend the contract will be brought back at a later date.   
 
While the contract has been extended, at some point, we need to decide what addition, if any, we 
want to change/add with our EMS services.  There are some options where we could hire East 
Texas to provide service, or we could establish an ALS service here in Lucas.  One other option 
could be East Texas providing an ambulance at a low rate, and then we provide the personnel.   
 
We do need to think closely about what we would like to do regarding EMS.  We do know the 
transport time frame is above tweleve minutes on average, with a growing population here in 
Lucas.  The Chief will provide an update on the latest, and we can further discuss this item.    



Item No. 01 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  February 7, 2013  Requestor:      
 
       Prepared by: Kathy Wingo    
 
Account Code #: N/A    Date Prepared:      
 
Budgeted Amount: $ N/A   Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 

Citizen’s Input. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
MOTION: 
 
No action necessary. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 



Item No. 02 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  February 7, 2013  Requestor:      
 
       Prepared by: Kathy Wingo    
 
Account Code #:  N/A   Date Prepared:      
 
Budgeted Amount: $ N/A   Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 

Items of Community Interest. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
MOTION: 
 
No action necessary. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda 

Request 



Item No. 03 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  February 7, 2013  Requestor: Joe Hilbourn    
 
       Prepared by: Kathy Wingo    
 
Account Code #:      Date Prepared:      
 
Budgeted Amount: $       Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 
 

Public Hearing/Discuss and Consider the approval of Ordinance # 2013-02-00749 
concerning a request for zoning of a tract of land situated in the James Anderson 
Survey, Abstract No. 17, the John McKinney Survey, Abstract No. 596, and the I & G N 
RY CO Survey, Abstract No. 1060, Collin County, Texas and being part of a called 
427.600± acre tract of land described in a deed to HHEC SpinCo LLC as recorded in 
Clerk’s File No. 20080902001058900, of the Land Records of Collin County, Texas, 
more commonly known as the Hunt Property located along Parker Road and Southview.  
Zoning is recommended as follows:  Residential one acre (R-1) 238.714 acres and 
Commercial Business (CB) 188.633 acres. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Planning & Zoning Commission recommends approval. 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
This is the 2nd Public Hearing, the 1st Public Hearing was held at the Planning & Zoning 
Commission Meeting, January 10, 2013. 
 
See attached. 
 
MOTION: 
 
I make a Motion to approve Ordinance # 2013-02-00749 concerning a request for 
zoning of a tract of land situated in the James Anderson Survey, Abstract No. 17, the 
John McKinney Survey, Abstract No. 596, and the I & G N RY CO Survey, Abstract No. 
1060, Collin County, Texas and being part of a called 427.600± acre tract of land 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 



Item No. 03 
City Secretary’s use only 

described in a deed to HHEC SpinCo LLC as recorded in Clerk’s File No. 
20080902001058900, of the Land Records of Collin County, Texas, more commonly 
known as the Hunt Property located along Parker Road and Southview. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   



City of Lucas, Texas 
Ordinance # 2013-02-00749 Change in Zoning Hunt Property 
Approved:  February 7, 2013 

 
ORDINANCE # 2013-02-00749 

[CHANGE IN ZONING HUNT PROPERTY] 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE AND MAP OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A CHANGE IN 
ZONING CLASSIFICATION TO COMMERCIAL BUSINESS  (“CB”) FOR 
THE ±128.633-ACRE TRACT OF LAND IN THE JAMES ANDERSON 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT 17, AND IN THE JOHN MCKINNEY SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT 596, LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “A” AND DEPICTED IN 
EXHIBIT “B” ATTACHED HERETO, AND TO GRANT A CHANGE IN 
ZONING TO RESIDENTIAL 1(“R1”) FOR THE ±238.714-ACRE TRACT OF 
LAND IN THE JAMES ANDERSON SURVEY, ABSTRACT 17, IN THE 
JOHN MCKINNEY SURVEY, ABSTRACT 596, AND IN THE I.&G.N. RY. 
CO. SURVEY, ABSTRACT 1060, LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, 
BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “C” AND 
DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT “D” ATTACHED HERETO; PROVIDING A 
REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Lucas, Texas and the City 
Council of the City of Lucas, Texas, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas with 
reference to the granting of zoning classifications and changes, have given the requisite notices by 
publication and otherwise, and have held due hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all 
property owners generally and to all persons interested and situated in the affected area and in the 
vicinity thereof, and the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas is of the opinion and finds that said 
zoning change should be granted and that the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map should be 
amended;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1. That the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map of the City of Lucas, Texas are 
hereby amended to grant a change in zoning to CB for the ±128.633-acre tract of land in the James 
Anderson Survey, Abstract 821 and in the John McKinney Survey, Abstract 596, Lucas, Collin 
County, Texas, and being more particularly described in Exhibit “A” and depicted in Exhibit “B” 
attached hereto and made part hereof for all purposes.   
 
Section 2. That the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map of the City of Lucas, Texas are 
hereby amended to grant a change in zoning to R1 for the ±238.714-acre tract of land in the James 
Anderson Survey, Abstract 17, in the John McKinney Survey, Abstract 596, and in the I.&G.N. RY. 

Annexation 
Disannexation 
Code of Ordinances 
Other 



City of Lucas, Texas 
Ordinance # 2013-02-00749 Change in Zoning Hunt Property 
Approved:  February 7, 2013 

CO. Survey, Abstract 1060, Lucas, Collin County, Texas, and being more particularly described in 
Exhibit “C” and depicted in Exhibit “D” attached hereto and made part hereof for all purposes.   
 
Section 3. That all ordinances of the City of Lucas in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be, and same are hereby, repealed, provided, however, that all other provisions 
of said Ordinances are not in conflict herewith shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 4. That should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section 
of this Ordinance or of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, be adjudged 
or held to be voided or unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of said Ordinances or the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, which 
shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5. That any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of this 
Ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Code of Ordinances, as 
amended, and upon conviction in the municipal court shall be punished by a fine not to exceed the 
sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense, and each and every day such violation 
shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
Section 6. That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Lucas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained 
 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNSEL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS 7TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2013. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Rebecca Mark, Mayor  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ ____________________________________ 
Joe Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney  Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC, City Secretary 
(JJG/12-21-12/58744) 

 
 
      



City of Lucas, Texas 
Ordinance # 2013-02-00749 Change in Zoning Hunt Property 
Approved:  February 7, 2013 

EXHIBIT “A” 
128.633 – ACRE TRACT OF LAND 

METES AND BOUNDS 
 

 



City of Lucas, Texas 
Ordinance # 2013-02-00749 Change in Zoning Hunt Property 
Approved:  February 7, 2013 

EXHIBIT “A” 
128.633 – ACRE TRACT OF LAND 

METES AND BOUNDS 

 



City of Lucas, Texas 
Ordinance # 2013-02-00749 Change in Zoning Hunt Property 
Approved:  February 7, 2013 

EXHIBIT “B” 
128.633 – ACRE TRACT OF LAND 

DEPICTION 
 

 



City of Lucas, Texas 
Ordinance # 2013-02-00749 Change in Zoning Hunt Property 
Approved:  February 7, 2013 

EXHIBIT “B” 
128.633 – ACRE TRACT OF LAND 

DEPICTION 

 



City of Lucas, Texas 
Ordinance # 2013-02-00749 Change in Zoning Hunt Property 
Approved:  February 7, 2013 

EXHIBIT “C” 
238.714 – ACRE TRACT OF LAND 

METES AND BOUNDS 
 

 



City of Lucas, Texas 
Ordinance # 2013-02-00749 Change in Zoning Hunt Property 
Approved:  February 7, 2013 

EXHIBIT “C” 
238.714 – ACRE TRACT OF LAND 

METES AND BOUNDS 

 



City of Lucas, Texas 
Ordinance # 2013-02-00749 Change in Zoning Hunt Property 
Approved:  February 7, 2013 

EXHIBIT “D” 
238.714 – ACRE TRACT OF LAND 

DEPICTION 
 

 



City of Lucas, Texas 
Ordinance # 2013-02-00749 Change in Zoning Hunt Property 
Approved:  February 7, 2013 

EXHIBIT “D” 
238.714 – ACRE TRACT OF LAND 

DEPICTION 

 



City of Lucas, Texas 
Ordinance # 2013-02-00749 Change in Zoning Hunt Property 
Approved:  February 7, 2013 

EXHIBIT “D” 
238.714 – ACRE TRACT OF LAND 

DEPICTION 

 



 

 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the Planning & Zoning Commission of the City 
of Lucas, Texas (the “City”), will conduct a Public Hearing on Thursday, January 
10, 2013, at 7:00 p.m. and City Council will conduct a second Public Hearing on 
Thursday February 7, 2013, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall, 665 Country Club, Lucas, 
Texas to consider: 
 
A recommendation for the re zoning of 67.5  + or - acres from CB to R-1 this 67.5 
acres is part of a 427.6  acre tract of land currently zoned R-1 and CB  situated in 
the City of Lucas (commonly known as the Northwest corner of Southview Drive 
and Parker Road) and described as follows: 
 
BEING a tract of land situated in the John McKinney Survey, Abstract Number 
596, James Anderson Survey, Abstract Number 17, and the Peter Lawless (I & G 
R R) Survey, Abstract Number 1060, Collin County, Texas, being all of a tract of 
land described in a deed to Hassie Hunt Trustee, as recorded in Volume 907, 
Page 117, of the Deed Records of Collin County, Texas, and being all of a tract 
of land described in a deed to Hassie Hunt Trustee, as recorded in Volume 925, 
Page 364, of the Deed Records of Collin County, Texas, and being more 
particularly described by metes and bounds as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a point for corner on the northerly end of a corner clip on the 
westerly right of way line of Farm to Market Road Number 1378 (Southview 
Drive) and the northerly right of way line of Farm to Market Road Number 2514 
(Parker Road); 
 
THENCE South 44°03'00" West, a distance of 69.60 feet to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE North 89°21'00" West, a distance of 1048.60 feet to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE North 89°50'00" West, a distance of 512.60 feet to a point for corner; 



at the beginning of a curve to the right, through a central angle of 11°09'15", a 
radius of 1,859.86 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 84°15'22" 
West, 361.50 feet; 
 
THENCE along said curve to the right, an arc length of 362.07 feet to a point for 
corner; 
 
THENCE North 78°54'50" West, a distance of 460.35 feet to a point for corner at 
the beginning of a curve to the left, through a central angle of 10°28'14", a radius 
of 2189.47 feet and a chord bearing and distance of North 84°08'57" West, 
399.56 feet; 
  
THENCE along said curve to the left, an arc length of 400.12 feet to a point for 
corner; 
 
THENCE South 89°38'00" West, a distance of 728.98 feet to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE North 00°32'00" West, a distance of 2905.68 feet to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE North 89°41'53" West, a distance of 482.05 feet to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE North 00°32'00" West, a distance of 2728.23 feet to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE South 89°49'00" East, a distance of 983.50 feet to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE North 87°07'00" East, a distance of 509.89 feet to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE South 01°50'13" East, a distance of 346.62 feet to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE North 90°00'00" East, a distance of 1804.65 feet to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE South 16°55'00" East, a distance of 339.97 feet to a point for corner at 
the beginning of a curve to the right, through a central angle of 12°58'00", a 
radius of 909.72 feet and a chord bearing and distance of South  10°26'00" East, 
205.44 feet; 
  
THENCE along said curve to the right, an arc length of 205.88 feet to a point for 
corner; 
 
THENCE South 03°57'00" East, a distance of 1429.87 feet to a point for corner at 
the beginning of a curve to the right, through a central angle of 2°48'40", a radius 
of 2820.34 feet and a chord bearing and distance of South  02°32'40" East, 
138.36 feet; 
 
THENCE along said curve to the right, an arc length of 138.37 feet to a point for 
corner; 



 
THENCE North 45°57'23" East, a distance of 12.35 feet to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE South 01°19'00" East, a distance of 1135.80 feet to a point for corner at 
the beginning of a curve to the left, through a central angle of 28°32'59", a radius 
of 618.00 feet and a chord bearing and distance of South 15°35'31" East, 304.76 
feet; 
  
THENCE along said curve to the left, an arc length of 307.94 feet to a point for 
corner; 
 
THENCE South 29°52'00" East, a distance of 294.07 feet to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE South 89°18'00" West, a distance of 178.32 feet to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE South 01°45'40" East, a distance of 606.95 feet to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE North 89°17'00" East, a distance of 410.60 feet to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE South 00°59'18" East, a distance of 1065.36 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING and containing 427.600 acres or 18,626,248 sq. ft. of land, more or 
less. 
 
Those wishing to speak FOR or AGAINST the above item are invited to attend. If 
you are unable to attend and have comments you may send them to City of 
Lucas, Attention: City Secretary, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas Texas 75002, 
972-727-8999, email kwingo@lucastexas.us, or Fax 972-727-0091 and they will 
be presented at the Hearing. 
 
  
       Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC 

City Secretary, Lucas, Texas 



Item No. 04 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  February 7, 2013  Requestor:      
 
       Prepared by: Kathy Wingo    
 
Account Code #:      Date Prepared:      
 
Budgeted Amount: $       Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 
 
Discuss and Consider the approval of the minutes from the January 3, 2013, City 
Council Regular meeting. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Approve as presented. 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
See attached. 
 
MOTION: 
 
I make a Motion to approve the minutes from the January 3, 2013, City Council Regular 
meeting as presented. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 1 of 4 
City Council Regular Minutes 
January 3, 2013 

City Council Regular Meeting 
January 3, 2013, at 7:00 PM 

City Hall - 665 Country Club Road 
 

Minutes 

Call to Order 
 
Mayor Rebecca Mark called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 
Mayor Rebecca Mark    Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele  
Councilmember Wayne Millsap (absent)  Councilmember Jim Olk 
Councilmember Steve Duke (absent)  Councilmember Philip Lawrence (absent) 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher   City Manager Jeff Jenkins 
City Secretary Kathy Wingo 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
It was determined that a Quorum was present. 
Everyone was reminded to turn off or silence cell phones. 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn led everyone in saying the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

Citizens’ Input 

1) Citizens’ Input. 

There was no one in the audience to provide Citizens’ Input. 

Community Interest 

2) Items of Community Interest. 

Councilmember Debbie Fisher reminded everyone that it is cold and flu season, you 
should keep eyes on your elderly neighbors. 

Public Hearings 
3) Public Hearing/Discuss and Consider the approval of Ordinance # 2013-01-00747 

of the City of Lucas, Texas, amending the Code of Ordinances by amending 
Ordinance # 2008-12-00635, adjusting in-city and out-of-city residential water rates, 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 2 of 4 
City Council Regular Minutes 
January 3, 2013 

adding a non-residential customer class; implementing a meter-size based minimum 
charge structure;  increasing residential and non-residential minimum charges and 
volumetric rates over a five year period at the levels and effective dates indicated in 
the rate tables provided within this ordinance; providing a severability clause; 
providing a repealing clause; and providing an effective date. [Jenkins] 

The Public Hearing was opened at 7:02 p.m. 

There was no one present who wished to speak FOR or AGAINST this item. 

The Public Hearing was closed at 7:02 p.m. 

The tables included in the ordinance have been reviewed by Council in prior 
meetings and all comments from the previous discussions have been incorporated 
into the final table. 

MOTION:  Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele made a Motion to approve Ordinance # 
2013-01-00747 of the City of Lucas, Texas, amending the Code of 
Ordinances by amending Ordinance # 2008-12-00635, adjusting in-city 
and out-of-city residential water rates, adding a non-residential customer 
class; implementing a meter-size based minimum charge structure;  
increasing residential and non-residential minimum charges and 
volumetric rates over a five year period at the levels and effective dates 
indicated in the rate tables provided within this ordinance; providing a 
severability clause; providing a repealing clause; and providing an 
effective date.  Councilmember Debbie Fisher seconded the Motion.  
Motion carried.  Vote:  4-0. 

4) Public Hearing/Discuss and Consider the approval of Ordinance # 2013-01-00748 
of the City of Lucas, Texas, establishing a wastewater rate structure; providing a 
severability clause; providing a repealing clause; and providing an effective date. 
[Jenkins] 

The Public Hearing was opened at 7:07 p.m. 

There was no one present who wished to speak FOR or AGAINST this item. 

The Public Hearing was closed at 7:07 p.m. 

City Manager Jeff Jenkins stated that there have been discussions with the 
customers being affected by this and there seems to be no concerns from those 
customers. 

MOTION:  Councilmember Debbie Fisher made a Motion to approve Ordinance # 
2013-01-00748 of the City of Lucas, Texas, establishing a wastewater 
rate structure; providing a severability clause; providing a repealing 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 3 of 4 
City Council Regular Minutes 
January 3, 2013 

clause; and providing an effective date.  Councilmember Jim Olk 
seconded the Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  4-0. 

Regular Agenda 

5) Discuss and Consider the approval of the minutes from the December 6, 2012 City 
Council Regular meeting. [Wingo] 

MOTION:  Councilmember Jim Olk made a Motion to approve the minutes from the 
December 6, 2012 City Council Regular meeting as presented.  
Councilmember Debbie Fisher seconded the Motion.  Motion carried.  
Vote:  4-0. 

6) Discuss and Consider approval of an Arts and Craft event to be held in May, 2013. 
[Hilbourn] 

The Parks & Open Space Board is recommending the City host an Arts and Craft 
event to be held in May, 2013. 

May is not a good time for Staff as it is the time of year for elections and budget 
preparation for the coming year. 

Councilmember Debbie Fisher stated that families are busy with end of the school 
year activities.  Would it not be better to set up a non-profit to better help with the 
accounting portion of the event? 

Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn stated that if each booth asked for 
power, each would require at least 20 amps of power, costing roughly $10,000 for 
the initial power supply to each booth. 

Mayor Rebecca Mark says she does not see this event as a revenue generating 
event.  There would be overtime for employees and the cost of supplying power.  
The does not seem to be a revenue generating event for the parks.  Typical arts & 
craft fairs are held during the fall and would have 10 – 20 booths.  There would also 
be very few vendors who require power. 

There was a discussion of incorporating this type of event into Founder’s Day.  The 
number of vendor booths would be limited, with Lucas residents being given first 
priority. 

Councilmember Debbie Fisher asked that creating a 503b and presenting a 
business plan be considered by the Parks & Open Space Board. 

Councilmember Jim Olk stated that if the Parks & Open Space Board has a project 
in mind and needs money they should come before Council and present the 
situation.  At that time Council can consider making a budget amendment or perhaps 
plan for the project in the coming year’s budget. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 4 of 4 
City Council Regular Minutes 
January 3, 2013 

No action taken on this item. 

7) Adjournment. 

MOTION:  Councilmember Jim Olk made a Motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:29 
p.m.  Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele seconded the Motion.  Motion 
carried.  Vote:  6-0. 

 
These minutes were approved by a majority vote of the City Council on February 7, 
2013. 

 
 
 

______________________________  
     Rebecca Mark, Mayor 
 
     ATTEST: 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC, City Secretary 

 



Item No. 05 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  February 7, 2013  Requestor: Kathy Wingo    
 
       Prepared by: Kathy Wingo    
 
Account Code #:  6110-445   Date Prepared: January 29, 2013   
 
Budgeted Amount: $   6,000 approx.  Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 
 
Discuss and Consider the approval of Ordinance # 2013-02-00750 of the City of Lucas, 
Texas, calling for a General Election to be held on May 11, 2013, for the purpose of 
electing two (2) city councilmembers at large; by the qualified voters of the City of 
Lucas; providing for the publication and posting of notice of said election; providing for 
the appointment of a deputy early voting clerk; providing for early voting; establishing 
regular business hours of the City Secretary’s Office. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Approve as presented. 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
See attached. 
 
Contract for elections services will be brought back to Council at a later date for action. 
 
MOTION: 
 
I make a Motion to approve Ordinance # 2013-02-00750 of the City of Lucas, Texas, 
calling for a General Election to be held on May 11, 2013, for the purpose of electing 
two (2) city councilmembers at large; by the qualified voters of the City of Lucas; 
providing for the publication and posting of notice of said election; providing for the 
appointment of a deputy early voting clerk; providing for early voting; establishing 
regular business hours of the City Secretary’s Office. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 



Item No. 05 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   



 

CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
ORDINANCE # 2013-02-00750 May 11, 2013 GENERAL ELECTION ORDER 
Approved February 7/2013  Page 1 

 

Annexation 
Disannexation 
Code of Ordinances 
Other 

 
 

ORDINANCE # 2013-02-00750 
[Calling for May 11, 2013 General Election] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, CALLING FOR A 
GENERAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 11, 2013, FOR THE PURPOSE 
OF ELECTING TWO (2) CITY COUNCILMEMBERS AT LARGE; BY THE 
QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE CITY OF LUCAS; PROVIDING FOR THE 
PUBLICATION AND POSTING OF NOTICE OF SAID ELECTION; 
PROVIDING FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF A DEPUTY EARLY VOTING 
CLERK; PROVIDING FOR EARLY VOTING; ESTABLISHING REGULAR 
BUSINESS HOURS OF THE CITY SECRETARY’S OFFICE; PROVIDING FOR 
A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS: 
 

SECTION 1.  That a general (regular) municipal election is hereby ordered to be 
held on May 11, 2013, for the purpose of electing two (2) City Councilmembers at-large, 
Seats 5 and 6, for a three (3) year term. 
 

SECTION 2.  Notice of the election shall be posted on the bulletin board used to 
post notice of the City Council meetings no later than the twenty-first day before election 
day.  The notice of the election shall also be published in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the City no earlier than the thirtieth day and no later than the tenth day 
before election day.  The notice shall state the nature and date of the election, the wording 
of all ballot propositions, the location of each polling place, hours that the polls will be 
open, and any other early voting and election-related information required by law.  The 
notice must be provided in both English and Spanish.  A copy of the published notice that 
contains the name of the newspaper and the date of publication shall be retained as a 
record of such notice, and such person posting the notice shall make a record of the time 
of posting, starting date and the place of posting, and such person shall sign said record. 

 
SECTION 3.  The governing body is authorized to sign the Order and Notice of 

General Election that shall be published in accordance with the provisions of the Texas 
Election Code. 
 

SECTION 4.  The Office of the City Secretary shall perform all duties normally 
performed by the County Clerk in a general election with respect to early voting, giving 
notice of the election and preparing the official ballots and is hereby appointed as the 
Election Clerk. 

 
SECTION 5. The City Secretary is expressly authorized to obtain election 

supplies and equipment required by law and necessary to conduct said election. 
 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
ORDINANCE # 2013-02-00750 May 11, 2013 GENERAL ELECTION ORDER 
Approved February 7, 2013  Page 2 

SECTION 6.  The City Secretary is authorized to recruit qualified election 
workers and return to the City Council a Resolution approving the selected election 
workers. 

 
SECTION 7.  All qualified voters of the City of Lucas, shall be permitted to vote 

for two (2) Councilmembers at-large.  In addition, the election materials as outlined in 
Section 272.005, Texas Election Code shall be printed in both English and Spanish for 
use at the polling place and for early voting of said election. 

 
SECTION 8.  All voting boxes shall be inspected and sealed by the City 

Secretary for all the public to witness on Friday, April 26, 2013, at 1:00 p.m. at Lucas 
City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas. 
 

SECTION 9. The City Secretary’s Office shall accept Candidate Applications for 
a place on the ballot beginning on January 30, 2013 and ending on March 1, 2013 by 5:00 
p.m. 
 

SECTION 10. On May 11, 2013, the voting for said election shall take place at 
665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas. The polls shall be open from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 
p.m.  Paper ballots, electronic voting systems, and hand counting shall be used for voting 
in the said election. 
 

SECTION 11. The City Secretary shall receive applications, in person, at 665 
Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas, for a ballot to be used for early voting by mail 
beginning on March 12, 2013 and ending May 3, 2013, at 5:00 p.m. 
 

SECTION 12.  Early voting shall be conducted by the Office of the City 
Secretary in the Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road and electronic voting system as 
well as paper ballots shall be used for early voting by mail and direct personal appearance 
for the election shall commence on April 29, 2013, at 8:00 a.m. and end at 7:00 p.m. on 
May 7, 2013.  Early voting by personal appearance shall be conducted during the regular 
business hours of the City Secretary’s Office each business day from 8:00 a.m. until 5:00 
p.m., except for the Tuesday, April 30, 2013 and May 7, 2013.  On the Tuesdays 
specified, early voting by personal appearance, the City Secretary’s regular business 
hours are hereby designated as 7:00 a.m. until 7:00 p.m.  Temporary Deputy Early Voting 
Clerks are hereby designated to assist in the absence of the Early Voting Clerk (City 
Secretary) during the said election and early voting.  Jeanine Harvell, Delta Moody, 
Jennifer Faircloth, Donna Bradshaw, Cheryl Meehan, and Eli Jepsen are duly appointed 
as Temporary Deputy Early Voting Clerks for the City of Lucas.  Each shall serve in full 
capacity as the Early Voting Clerk in the absence of the Early Voting Clerk (City 
Secretary). 

 
SECTION 13.  The City Hall, located at 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas, 

is hereby established as the Counting Station to receive and tabulate votes and ballots cast 
in said election.  The following persons are hereby authorized and approved as persons 
employed and designated to handle the ballots, count the ballots, and to be present in the 
Central Counting Station: 

 
(a) Presiding Election Judge  



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
ORDINANCE # 2013-02-00750 May 11, 2013 GENERAL ELECTION ORDER 
Approved February 7, 2013  Page 3 

(b) Alternate Judge/Clerk  
(c) Clerks  
(d) Early Voting Clerk/City Secretary 
(e) Temporary Deputy Early Voting Clerks 

 
The City Secretary shall present the election returns to the City of Lucas City Council at a 
City Council meeting for the canvassing of said election in accordance with the Texas 
Election Code.  Each candidate for each of the elections ordered herein shall, in 
accordance with state law, appoint a watcher to be present at the Central Counting Station 
to observe the election counting process and the notice of such appointment shall be 
given to the City Secretary. 
 

SECTION 14.  Should any candidate in the general municipal election fail to 
receive a majority by virtue of a tie vote and such cannot be resolved in accordance with 
state law, then in that event the City Council hereby authorizes a run-off election to be 
held on June 15, 2013. 

 
SECTION 15.  Should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase 

or section of this ordinance be adjudged or held to be void or unconstitutional, the same 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of said ordinance, which shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 16.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 

passage.  
  

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lucas this                   
7th day of February, 2013. 
 
 
 

       
 __________________________________________ 

     Rebecca Mark, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Joe Gorfida, City Attorney 
(ALS/1-22-10/41596) 

 
 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
ORDINANCE # 2013-02-00750 May 11, 2013 GENERAL ELECTION ORDER 
Approved February 7, 2013  Page 4 

ORDER AND NOTICE OF GENERAL ELECTION 
(AVISO DE ELECCION GENERAL) 

 

To the Registered Voters of the City of Lucas, Texas; 
Notice is hereby given that the polling places listed below will open from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. on May 
11, 2013, for voting general election to elect two (2) Councilmembers at-large. 
 

(A los votantes registrados de la ciudad de Lucas, Texas: 
Por la presente se notifica que las casillas electorales nombradas abajo se abriran desde las 7:00 a.m a 7 
p.m. el 11 de Mayo, 2013.  Para votar en la Eleccion General para elegir dos (2) Miembros de consejo). 

LOCATIONS OF POLLING PLACES 
(Direccion (es) de las casillas electorales) 
 
Location of Election Day Polling Places  
Include Name of Building and Address  
(Ubicación de las casillas electorales el Día de Elección)  
(Incluir Nombre del Edificio y Dirección) 
 

Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002 
(location) (sitio) 

Precinct Number(s) 128, 41 
(Número de precinto) 128, 41 

 
For early voting, a voter may vote at any of the locations listed below:  
(Para Votación temprana, los votantes podrán votar en cualquiera de las ubicaciones nombradas abajo.) 
 
Location of Election Day Polling Places  
Include Name of Building and Address  
(Ubicación de las casillas electorales del Día de Elección)  
(Incluir Nombre del Edificio y Dirección) 
 

Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002 
(location) (sitio) 

Precinct Number(s) 128, 41 
(Número de precinto) 128, 41 

 
 
Between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. each weekday beginning on April 29, 2013 and ending on 
May 7, 2013.  Tuesday Early Voting will be held April 30 and May 7, 2013 from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
 
Entre las horas de 8:00 a.m. a 5:00 p.m. cada día laborable que comienza el 29 de Abril, 2013 y se termina 
el 7 de Mayo, 2013.  El martes la votación temprana  será sostenida el 30 de Abril y el 7 de Mayo, 2013 
desde las 7:00 a.m. a 5:00 p m.. 

 
 

Applications for ballot by mail shall be mailed to: 
(Las solicitudes para votacion por correo en caso de ausencia deberan enviarse a:) 

 
Kathy Wingo       
(Early Voting Clerk)  
(Secretaria de la Votación )  
665 Country Club_________________________  
(Address) (Dirección)  
Lucas  75002_____________________  
(City) (Ciudad) (Zip Code) (Código Postal) 
 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
ORDINANCE # 2013-02-00750 May 11, 2013 GENERAL ELECTION ORDER 
Approved February 7, 2013  Page 5 

Applications for ballots by mail must be received no later than the close of business on: May 3, 
2013.  
(Las aplicaciones para votaciónes por correo no deben ser recibidas más tarde que al final del dia de 
negocio, 3 de mayo, 2013.) 

 

 

Issued this the 7th day of February, 2013 
(Emitada este dia 7 de Febrero, 2013. 

 
 

 
             
Rebecca Mark, Mayor    Kathleen Peele, Mayor Pro Tem 
(Alcalde)     (Alcalde Pro Tem)    
  
 
             
Wayne Millsap, Councilmember   Jim Olk, Councilmember  
(Miembro de consejo)    (Miembro de consejo) 
 
 
             
Steve Duke, Councilmember    Philip Lawrence, Councilmember 
 (Miembro de consejo)     (Miembro de consejo) 

 
 
       
Debbie Fisher, Councilmember 
 (Miembro de consejo) 

 



Item No. 06 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  February 7, 2013  Requestor: Joe Hilbourn    
 
       Prepared by: Kathy Wingo    
 
Account Code #:      Date Prepared:      
 
Budgeted Amount: $       Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 
 
Discuss and Consider the approval of Ordinance # 2013-02-00751 of the City Of 
Lucas, Texas, amending the Code of Ordinances by amending Chapter 3 “Building 
Regulations”, Article 3.16 “Signs” by amending Section 3.16.003 to provide for a general 
penalty provision and by amending Section 3.16.007 “Exempt Signs” by adding a new 
Subsection 3.16.007(14) to provide regulations regarding on Premise Construction 
Signs. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
See attached. 
 
MOTION: 
 
I make a Motion to approve Ordinance # 2013-02-00751 of the City Of Lucas, Texas, 
amending the Code of Ordinances by amending Chapter 3 “Building Regulations”, 
Article 3.16 “Signs” by amending Section 3.16.003 to provide for a general penalty 
provision and by amending Section 3.16.007 “Exempt Signs” by adding a new 
Subsection 3.16.007(14) to provide regulations regarding on Premise Construction 
Signs. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2013-02-00751 Construction Sign Regulations 
Approved: February 7, 2013  - 1 -  

 
 

ORDINANCE # 2013-02-00751 
[Construction Sign Regulations] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING CHAPTER 3 “BUILDING 
REGULATIONS”, ARTICLE 3.16 “SIGNS” BY AMENDING SECTION 
3.16.003 TO PROVIDE FOR A GENERAL PENALTY PROVISION AND 
BY AMENDING SECTION 3.16.007 “EXEMPT SIGNS” BY ADDING A 
NEW SUBSECTION 3.16.007(14) TO PROVIDE  REGULATIONS 
REGARDING ON PREMISE CONSTRUCTION SIGNS; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF 
FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS 
($500.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend Chapter 3 “Building Regulations,” 
Article 3.16 “Signs,” by amending section 3.16.003 to provide for a general penalty for violating 
provisions of Article 3.16 and by amending Section 3.16.007(14) to provide for regulations 
regarding the placement of on-premise construction signs.    
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS: 

 
SECTION 1. That the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lucas, Texas be, and the same 

is, hereby amended by amending Chapter 3 “Building Regulations,” Article 3.16 “Signs,” by 
amending Section 3.16.003 to provide for a general penalty provision and by amending Section 
3.16.007(14) to provide for regulations regarding the placement of on-premise construction 
signs, to read as follows: 

 
"CHAPTER 3 BUSINESS REGULATIONS 

 
ARTICLE 3.16  SIGNS 

 
[…] 
 
Sec. 3.16.003  Penalty 
 
Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this article shall be deemed 
guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be punished by a penalty or fine as provided 
in Section 1.01.009(a) of this Code for each offense, and every day such offense is continued 
shall constitute a new and separate offense.  
 
[…] 

Annexation 
Disannexation 
Code of Ordinances 
Other 



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2013-02-00751 Construction Sign Regulations 
Approved: February 7, 2013  - 2 -  

 
Sec. 3.16.007  Exempt Signs 

Exempt signs as designated under this section are allowed without a permit in all zoning districts 
in accordance with this article. 

  […] 
  

(14) Construction Signs shall conform to the following requirements:  

 (A) The sign area shall not exceed twelve (12) square feet. 

 (B) Construction Signs may not be illuminated. 

(C) Signs shall not be placed more than seven (7) days in advance of the 
project, and must be removed within seven (7) days of completion of the 
project. 

  (D) Only one Construction Sign per street frontage, per property is permitted.” 

SECTION 2. That should any sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or 
section of this ordinance be adjudged or held to be unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, the same 
shall not affect the validity of this ordinance as a whole, or any part or provision thereof other 
than the part so decided to be invalid, illegal or unconstitutional, and shall not affect the validity 
of the Code of Ordinances as a whole. 

 
SECTION 3. That all provisions of the ordinances of the City of Lucas, Texas, in 

conflict with the provisions of this ordinance be, and the same are hereby, repealed, and all other 
provisions of the ordinances of the City not in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 4. That an offense committed before the effective date of this ordinance is 

governed by the prior law and the provisions of the Code of Ordinances, as amended, in effect 
when the offense was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose. 

 
SECTION 5. Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of 

this Ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Code of Ordinances, as 
amended, and upon conviction in the municipal court shall be punished by a fine not to exceed 
the sum of Five Dollars ($500.00) for each offense, and each and every day such violation shall 
continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 

 
SECTION 6. This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 

and the publication of the caption, as the law in such cases provides. 
 
 



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2013-02-00751 Construction Sign Regulations 
Approved: February 7, 2013  - 3 -  

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas, on the 7th 
day of February, 2013. 
 
 
 
      By: ____________________________________ 
       Rebecca Mark, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC  
City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Joe Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney 
(JJG/10-26-12/57936) 

 

 

 



Sec. 3.16.002 Definitions 
 
 Construction Sign. Any temporary on‐premise sign located upon a site where construction or 

landscaping is in progress and relating specifically to the project which is under construction 

provided that no such sign shall exceed a total of twelve (12) square feet in sign area. 

 

Sec. 3.16.007 Exempt signs 

(13) Construction signs shall conform to the requirements of this section:  

a. The Sign Area shall not exceed twelve (12) square feet;  

b. Signs may not be illuminated;  

c. Signs shall not be placed more than seven (7) days in advance of the project, and must be 

removed within seven (7) days of completion of the project;  

d. Only one (1) sign per street frontage, per property is allowed;  

e. No sign permit is required. 



Item No. 07 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  February 7, 2013  Requestor: Jeff Jenkins    
 
       Prepared by: Kathy Wingo    
 
Account Code #:      Date Prepared: January 29, 2013   
 
Budgeted Amount: $       Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 
 
Discuss and Consider the approval of Resolution # R-2013-02-00395 of the City of 
Lucas, Texas, authorizing the City Manager to execute the agreement between the City 
and Dana Huffman for Dana Huffman to serve as presiding Judge for the City’s 
Municipal Court. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Approve as presented. 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
See attached. 
 
MOTION: 
 
I make a Motion to approve Resolution # R-2013-02-00395 of the City of Lucas, Texas, 
authorizing the City Manager to execute the agreement between the City and Dana 
Huffman for Dana Huffman to serve as presiding Judge for the City’s Municipal Court. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 



 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
RESOLUTION # R-2013-02-00395 APPROVING AGREEMENT FOR MUNICIPAL JUDGE 
APPROVED:  FEBRUARY 7, 2013   
 

 

RESOLUTION # R-2013-02-00395 
[Approving Agreement for Municipal Court Judge]  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 
AGREEMENT FOR MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE BETWEEN THE CITY 
AND DANA HUFFMAN FOR DANA HUFFMAN TO SERVE AS 
PRESIDING JUDGE FOR THE CITY’S MUNICIPAL COURT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lucas (the “City”) has been presented an 
Agreement for Municipal Court Judge between the City and Dana Huffman for Dana Huffman to 
serve as the Presiding Judge for the City’s Municipal Court (the “Agreement”);  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City Manager shall execute the Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit 
“A,” for Dana Huffman to serve as the Presiding Judge for the City’s Municipal Court. 
 
 SECTION 2. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
 DULY PASSED by the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas, on the 7th day of 
February, 2013. 
 
      APPROVED: 

 
       

 __________________________________________ 
      Rebecca Mark, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________________ 
Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________________________ 
Joe Gorfida, City Attorney 
(JJG/01-28-13/59192) 



 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
RESOLUTION # R-2013-02-00395 APPROVING AGREEMENT FOR MUNICIPAL JUDGE 
APPROVED:  FEBRUARY 7, 2013   
 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  §  
    § AGREEMENT FOR MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE  
COUNTY OF COLLIN §   
 
 This agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and between the City of Lucas, Texas (“City”) 
and Dana Huffman (“Judge”), (individually as the “Party” or collectively as the “Parties”), acting 
by and through their authorized representatives. 
 

Recitals: 
 
 WHEREAS, City desires to engage the services of the Judge as an independent 
contractor and not as an employee in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Judge desires to render services as the Presiding Judge of the Lucas 
Municipal Court, in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in exchange for the mutual covenants set forth herein and other 
valuable consideration, the sufficiency and receipt of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties 
agree as follows: 
 

Article I 
Term 

The Term of this Agreement shall commence effective March 1, 2013, (the “Effective 
Date”) and end on March 1, 2015, for a two-year term. 

 
Article II 

Scope of Services 
 

2.1 Judge shall preside over municipal court proceedings for and on behalf of the City 
as its Presiding Judge; and, to conduct services as may be required from time-to-time, including 
but not limited to, issuance of search arrests and/or capias warrants, and such administrative 
duties and responsibilities as are necessary and incidental to the office of Presiding Judge of the 
City’s Municipal Court. 

 
 2.2 Judge shall maintain eligibility and the appropriate licenses as may be required 
under State law to serve in the capacity as the Presiding Judge of the City’s Municipal Court for 
the Term of this Agreement.  
 

2.3 Judge shall perform all services in accordance with the Code of Judicial Conduct 
applicable to judges of courts in the State of Texas and agrees to conduct herself in a judicial 
demeanor at all times in representing the City. 

 



 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
RESOLUTION # R-2013-02-00395 APPROVING AGREEMENT FOR MUNICIPAL JUDGE 
APPROVED:  FEBRUARY 7, 2013   
 

 

2.4 Judge is not precluded from performing such legal services in maintaining her 
private practice of law, and nothing construed herein shall preclude her from maintaining her 
private legal practice. 

2.5 Judge hereby agrees not to knowingly undertake any legal matter that would 
compromise or conflict with her duties and responsibilities as the Municipal Court Judge or 
otherwise knowingly undertake to represent a client on a legal matter against the City. 
 

Article III 
Municipal Court Docket 

 
 Judge agrees to preside over the City’s Municipal Court docket once per month.  If 
additional court dates in excess of once per month are necessary, the Judge shall be compensated 
as provided in Section 4.2. 
 

Article IV 
Compensation and Method of Payment 

 
4.1 City shall compensate Judge in the amount of Five Hundred 

Dollars ($500.00) per month. 
 

 4.2 City shall compensate Judge at the rate of one hundred twenty-five dollars per 
hour ($125.00) if additional court dates in excess of one per month are required. 
 
 4.3 City shall compensate the Judge for services provided pursuant to this Agreement 
and, as set forth in this Article, within thirty (30) days after receiving the Judge’s invoice 
reflecting her time and billing, provided there are no errors or discrepancies.  
 
 4.4 The Parties agree that if the City’s Municipal Court case load increases for any 
reason, the Parties shall review the terms of this Agreement and the Judge’s compensation. 

 
Article V 

Removal of Judge/Termination 
  
 5.1 The Parties acknowledge that the Judge can be removed for cause.  
 
 5.2 Furthermore, either Party may terminate this Agreement with or without cause by 
giving thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other party. In the event of such termination, 
the Judge shall be entitled to compensation for any services completed to the reasonable 
satisfaction of City in accordance with this Agreement prior to such termination.  
 

Article VI 
Miscellaneous 

 



 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
RESOLUTION # R-2013-02-00395 APPROVING AGREEMENT FOR MUNICIPAL JUDGE 
APPROVED:  FEBRUARY 7, 2013   
 

 

 6.1 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement 
between the parties and supersedes any prior understandings written or oral agreements between 
the parties with respect to this subject matter. 
 
 6.2 Assignment.  Judge may not assign this Agreement in whole or in part without the 
prior written consent of City.  In the event of an assignment by the Judge to which City has 
consented, the assignee shall agree in writing with City to personally assume, perform, and be 
bound by all the covenants, and obligations contained in this Agreement. 
 
 6.3 Successors and Assigns.  Subject to the provisions regarding assignment, this 
Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the Parties to it and their respective 
heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns. 
 
 6.4 Governing Law.  The laws of the State of Texas shall govern this Agreement; and 
venue for any action concerning this Agreement shall be in the State District Court of Collin 
County, Texas.  The Parties agree to submit to the personal and subject matter jurisdiction of said 
court. 
 
 6.5 Amendments.  This Agreement may be amended by the mutual written agreement 
of the parties. 
 
 6.6 Severability.  In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this 
Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, 
such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not effect any other provisions, and the 
Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never 
been contained in it. 
 
 6.7 Independent Contractor.  It is understood and agreed by and between the Parties 
that the Judge, in satisfying the conditions of this Agreement, is acting independently, and that 
City assumes no responsibility or liabilities to any third party in connection with these actions.  
All services to be performed by the Judge pursuant to this Agreement shall be in the capacity of 
an independent contractor, and not as an agent or employee of City. 
 
 6.8 Notice.  Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder may be sent 
by first class mail, overnight courier or by confirmed telefax or facsimile to the address specified 
below, or to such other party or address as either party may designate in writing, and shall be 
deemed received three (3) days after delivery set forth herein: 
 

If intended for City: With Copy to: 
Attn:  City Manager   Joe Gorfida, Jr. 
City of Lucas Nichols, Jackson, Dillard, Hager & Smith, L.L.P. 
665 Country Club Road 1800 Lincoln Plaza 
Lucas, Texas 75002 500 North Akard 
 Dallas, Texas 75201 
 



 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
RESOLUTION # R-2013-02-00395 APPROVING AGREEMENT FOR MUNICIPAL JUDGE 
APPROVED:  FEBRUARY 7, 2013   
 

 

If intended for Judge: 
 ___________________________ 
 ___________________________ 
 ___________________________ 
 ___________________________ 
  
 
 6.9 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed by the Parties hereto in separate 
counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original, but all such 
counterparts shall together constitute one and the same instrument.  Each counterpart may consist 
of any number of copies hereof each signed by less than all, but together signed by all of the 
parties hereto. 
 
 6.10 Exhibits.  The exhibits attached hereto are incorporated herein and made a part 
hereof for all purposes. 
 

6.11 Audits and Records.  Judge agrees that during the term hereof, City and its 
representatives may, during normal business hours and as often as deemed necessary, inspect, 
audit, examine and reproduce any and all of the Judge’s records relating to the services provided 
pursuant to this Agreement for a period of one year following the date of completion of services 
as determined by City or date of termination if sooner. 
 
 6.12 Conflicts of Interests.  Judge represents that no official or employee of City has 
any direct or indirect pecuniary interest in this Agreement.  
 

[Signature Page to Follow] 
 
  



 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
RESOLUTION # R-2013-02-00395 APPROVING AGREEMENT FOR MUNICIPAL JUDGE 
APPROVED:  FEBRUARY 7, 2013   
 

 

 EXECUTED this 7th day of February, 2013. 
 
     City of Lucas, Texas 

 
 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
 Jeff Jenkins, City Manager 

 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
By:  ___________________________________ 
 Joe Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney 
 (JJG/01-28-13/59190) 

  
     
 
 
 
 EXECUTED this _______ day of February, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
By:  ____________________________________ 

    Dana Huffman, Judge 



Item No. 08 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  February 7, 2013  Requestor: Fire Chief Jim Kitchens  
 
       Prepared by:      
 
Account Code #:      Date Prepared:      
 
Budgeted Amount: $       Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 
 
Discuss and Consider the approval of extending the contract between the City of Lucas 
and the East Texas Coalition for a period of one (1) year for ambulance services. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
See attached. 
 
MOTION: 
 
I make a Motion to….. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

































































Item No. 09 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  February 7, 2013  Requestor: Fire Chief Jim Kitchens  
 
       Prepared by:      
 
Account Code #:      Date Prepared:      
 
Budgeted Amount: $       Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 
 
Discuss and Consider an update on EMS services. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
 
MOTION: 
 
I make a Motion to….. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 



Item No. 10 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  February 7, 2013  Requestor: Fire Chief Jim Kitchens  
 
       Prepared by:      
 
Account Code #:      Date Prepared:      
 
Budgeted Amount: $       Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 
 
Discuss and Consider an update on the Fire Department Expansion Design. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
 
MOTION: 
 
I make a Motion to….. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 



Item No. 11 
City Secretary’s use only 

 
 

Council Meeting:  February 7, 2013  Requestor:      
 
       Prepared by: Kathy Wingo    
 
Account Code #: N/A    Date Prepared:      
 
Budgeted Amount: $  N/A    Exhibits:  Yes  No 
 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT: 

Adjournment. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
 
MOTION: 
 
I make a Motion to adjourn the meeting at    p.m. 
 
APPROVED BY:       Initial/Date 
 
     Department Director:   /   
     City Manager:   /   

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 


	00 cc-20130207-rg-agenda
	00 Attendance sheet
	00 City Manager Memo 20130207
	01 citizens' input cs
	02 community interest cs
	03 zoning for hunt property cs
	03 2013-02-00749 Change in Zoning for Hunt Property
	03 Hunt Property Parker Rd  Southview Zoning Notice of Public Hearing Zoning
	04 minutes approval cs
	04 cc-20130103-rg-minutes
	05 call for the election cs
	05 2013-02-00750 Call for May 11 2013 General Election
	06 construction sign cs
	06 2013-02-00751 Amending Chap 3 Signs by Providing Regulations for On Premise Construction Signs57936
	06 Construction Sign
	07 municipal judge cs
	07 R-2013-02-00395 Approving Agreement for Municipal Court Judge (Dana Huffman)59192
	08 coalition cs
	08 Contract for Paramedic Ambulance Services
	08 EMS Coalition
	09 EMS update cs
	10 fire department cs
	11 adjournment cs

